
   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 

FIRST MONTHLY MEETING 

December 10, 2014 

9:00 a.m. 

 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Accept comments from the public. 

 

3. Approve minutes from the October 22 and November 5, 2014 meetings. 

 

4. Routine items for December 10, 2014. 

 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 

b. Approve service and disability allowances. 

c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 

d. Approve death benefits. 

e. Accept Asset Allocation Report. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

5. The Board will go into closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to consider 

recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following 

disability retirement applications: 

 

    Member Type Sought  Recommendation 

a. James Argo Service Connected Service Connected 

b. Eugene Dick Service Connected Service Connected 

c. Matthew Hopkins Service Connected Service Connected 

d. Phillip Wisotsky Service Connected Service Connected 

 

6. The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 

54956.9(d)(2) to confer with legal counsel regarding anticipated litigation (one case). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

OPEN SESSION 

 

7. Consider and Take Possible Action Regarding the Retiree Lookback Project: Review 

of past incidents of unusual compensation increases at the end of employment. 

 

8. Consider and Take Possible action to adopt:  

 

a. Policy Governing the Overpayment Or Underpayment of Member 

Contributions 

b. Policy Governing the Overpayment Or Underpayment of Member Benefits 

 

9. Consider and Take Possible Action To Recover Erroneous Spousal Continuance 

Payments to Ineligible Spouse. 

 

10. Consider and Take Possible Action to Correct Call Back Pay Erroneously Reported As 

Pensionable Which Resulted In Overpayments of Benefits to Retirees and 

Overpayment of Retirement Contributions. 

 

11. Consider and Take Possible Action to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-4 providing a 

2.75% Prospective Adjustment in Base Pay for all CCCERA Employees, except the 

Retirement CEO position. 

 

12. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

a. 4th Annual Risk and Liquidity Forum, Institutional Investor, January 27-28, 

2015, San Francisco, CA. (Note: Conflict with Board Meeting) 

b. Forum 2015, Commonfund, March 14-17, 2015, Orlando, FL. 

c. The Chief Investment Officer Summit, Asset International, April 15-17, 2015, 

New York, NY. (Note: Staff Only) 

 

13. Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report 

b. Outside Professionals’ Report  

c. Trustees’ comments 

 

 

 



 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

 
SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 

9:00 a.m. 
 

October 22, 2014 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
                         
Present: Debora Allen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Karen Mitchoff, 

John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Russell 
Watts 

 
Absent: None 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief 

Investment Officer; Karen Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Christina Dunn, 
Retirement Administration Manager; Wrally Dutkiewicz, Retirement Compliance Officer 
and Chih-chi Chu, Retirement Investment Analyst 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Bob Helliesen  Milliman 
Marty Dirks  Milliman 
Dorian Young  Milliman 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

Gordon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

3. Presentation from staff and INVESCO regarding potential commitment to the INVESCO U.S. 
Real Estate Fund IV – Max Swango, Jay Hurley, Kevin Conroy 

Price reviewed the background on investing in real estate noting we are looking at a $35 million 
allocation to Fund IV. He discussed the fees and noted in the future there will be an example on how 
the fees will be paid. 

Chu reported INVESCO is one of CCCERA’s three value add managers. He gave an overview of 
CCCERA’s relationship with INVESCO. He also reviewed Fund IV noting it has closed one notable 
transaction in San Francisco to date. 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 



Page 2 
October 22, 2014 

 

 

Chu reviewed the past performance of Funds I, II and III. 

Allen was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

Swango gave an overview of the firm and the real estate team.  He reviewed CCCERA’s 
investments in Fund I, II and III and gave a summary of Fund IV. 

Conroy summarized Funds I, II and III.   

Hurley reviewed their value added performance track record.  He also reviewed their relative 
performance noting capital has been returned to investors at a faster pace than their peers. He also 
reviewed their investment philosophy and portfolio construction including their portfolio 
construction targets for Value Fund IV. 

Swango reviewed the current market fundamentals – supply, demand and revenue growth. He also 
reviewed the terms of Fund IV and the current investments in the Fund. 

4. Consider and take possible action regarding potential commitment to the INVESCO U.S. Real 
Estate Fund IV 

It was M/S/C to invest $35 million in the INVESCO U.S. Real Estate Fund IV subject to due 
diligence, legal review and authorize the CEO to sign all necessary contracts. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, 
Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

5. Update for Board on status of Investment Consultant Search 

Price distributed a memo from Cortex on the respondents noting 3 of the firms have been removed 
from consideration based on different factors.  Cortex and staff are preparing their evaluation on the 
remaining 10 firms. He reported a summary report will be available on November 17th and is on 
schedule at this point. The final presentations will be in the first quarter of 2015. He noted the firms 
listed on the memo are in a quiet period and should not have communication with Board members 
regarding the RFP. 

6. Consider appointment of an ad hoc committee to review the request for proposal responses for 
labor and employment legal counsel 

Levy reported this committee is a limited purpose and limited duration committee.  The purpose of 
the ad hoc committee is to review the responses to the request for proposal and make a 
recommendation to the full Board regarding the selection of one or more labor and employment law 
firms.  Gordon, Holcombe, Telles and Watts volunteered for the ad hoc committee. 
 

Holcombe was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

7. Consider and take possible action to establish an audit committee of the Board 

The Board discussed the purpose of having a standing audit committee.  They questioned how many 
‘37 Act Boards have a standing audit committee. Levy noted there are quite a few in the larger 
systems.  Strohl noted the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends public 
pension boards have a standing audit committee and they have specific documentation that the 
committee would be privy to.   

There was a discussion on the pros and cons of an ad hoc committee versus a standing committee.  
Levy noted standing committees are subject to the Brown Act requirements of open and public 
meetings with notice to the public.  It was recommended that the Board adopt a written policy or 
charter regarding the establishment of the standing audit committee that would set forth the subject 



Page 3 
October 22, 2014 

 

 

matters within the purview of the committee.  A standing committee could not take final action but 
would provide recommendations to the full Board.  The Board requested information on how many 
’37 Acts have a standing audit committee and if those boards feel they are beneficial. 

It was M/S to establish a standing audit committee with their initial charge being 1) reviewing 
recommendations of CCCERA staff and outside auditor regarding the audited financial statements, 
CCCERA internal controls and audit and compliance plans; and 2) review and address audit and 
compliance review findings; and direct a committee to be formed and return with further 
recommendations regarding the scope of the audit committees functions and a sampling of what 
other systems do with respect to their audit committee and strongly encourage committee 
membership with both employee organizations and appointed trustees. 

Levy noted the Board may have to amend its regulations and submit them to the Board of 
Supervisors for approval and then a committee charter would need to be adopted.  

An amended motion was M/S/C to direct staff/CEO/general counsel to conduct a survey with all 
other plans and bring back information on all of the necessary steps to establish an audit committee. 
(Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

Gordon was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

8. Conference Seminar Attendance  

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of two staff members at the Annual Partners Meeting, 
Long Wharf Real Estate Partners, November 19-20, 2014, Boston, MA. (Yes: Allen, Hast, 
Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 
 

Gordon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 
 
9. Miscellaneous 

 
(a) Staff Report – 

 
Price reported on a correction regarding Oaktree RE Opportunities Fund VII and the Cayman 
Islands feeder fund noting everything is in a Cayman fund and it was set up that way because 
they expected a higher percentage of non-US investors and to avoid double taxation.  The 
process still goes through Reed Smith Legal counsel. 
 
Strohl reported the interior renovations are continuing; investments will be in their suite in the 
beginning of November; she gave an update on the website development RFP noting they have 
received 5 proposals and are in the process of evaluating them.  
 
She provided some updates on CCCERA becoming an independent district: staff is working 
with the County on service agreements so everything will be in place by January for CCCERA 
to become the employer of its staff; staff will be coming back to the Board with 2 resolutions, 
one confirming CCCERA as an independent district and one consenting to CCCERA’s 
continued participation in the CCCERA retirement system.  

 
Dutkiewicz reported he is continuing to work on employer audits; his first report of preliminary 
findings was delivered to Bethel Island and he is waiting for their response; he is working on 
his second employer on-site audit.   

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report –  

 



Page 4 
October 22, 2014 

 

 

None   
 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 
 
Telles reported he attended the Torchlight Client Service Conference in New York and felt the 
conference was well worth it.  He also met with Sigular Guff.  He attended the Angelo Gordon 
on-site visit and was comfortable with their investment presentation.  He also attended the 
Torchlight on-site visit. He attended the California Retirees Conference in Sacramento and 
stated CCCERA was the topic of discussion because we are the only system that has completely 
separated from the county.  He reported one issue that came up is whether or not to allow 
differentials to PEPRA members for ‘37 Act systems. It was noted all but two systems 
(including CCCERA) are allowing differentials. 

 
 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, 
Telles and Watts) 
 
 
 
 
             
Brian Hast, Chairman     Jerry Telles, Secretary 
 
 



 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
FIRST MONTHLY BOARD MEETING 

9:00 a.m. 
 

November 5, 2014 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
 
Present: Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Karen Mitchoff, John Phillips, William Pigeon, 

Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 
 
Absent: Debora Allen, Scott Gordon and Jerry Telles 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement 

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen 
Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting Manager; and 
Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

None 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the September 10, 2014 meeting correcting the spelling of 
Phillips name on page 5, Item 17 (c). (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Watts)  

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the September 17, 2014 meeting. (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, 
Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

4. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the November 5, 2014 Board meeting. (Yes:  Hast, 
Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 6. 

 



Page 2 
November 5, 2014 

 

 

6. Consider and take possible action to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-2 confirming the 
participation of the CCCERA “District” in the CCCERA retirement system 

Levy reported this Resolution confirms the participation of CCCERA as an independent district in 
CCCERA the retirement system.  

It was M/S/C to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-2 confirming the participation of the CCCERA 
“District” in the CCCERA retirement system. (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

7. Consider and take possible action to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-3 consenting to the continued 
participation of CCCERA in the retirement system 

Levy reported this Resolution is the consent of CCCERA the retirement system to the continued 
participation of CCCERA the independent district in the retirement.  She explained that as a result of 
the passage of Senate Bill 673, CCCERA will be designated as a district effective January 1, 2015 
pursuant to the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL), Government Code Section 
31468(l)(3).  Independent districts may elect to be included as a participating employer in CCCERA 
by adoption of a resolution by a two-thirds vote of the districts' governing body, with the consent of 
CCCERA, pursuant to CERL Section 31557(b).   

It was M/S/C to adopt BOR Resolution 2014-3 consenting to the continued participation of 
CCCERA in the retirement system. (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Watts) 

8. Consider and take possible action to approve firm to offer Labor Relations and Consultation 
Services as the Chief Labor Negotiator 

Strohl reported an RFP was issued in September to provide Labor Relations and Consultation 
Services as the Chief Labor Negotiator. She reported we received 2 proposals that met the minimum 
requirements. 

The Board interviewed Joseph Wiley of Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP and Chet Quaide and Todd 
Goluba of Atkinson, Anderson, Loya, Ruud & Romo. 

After a discussion, it was M/S/C to appoint Joseph Wiley of Wiley Price & Radulovich, LLP as the 
Chief Labor Negotiator for CCCERA subject to contract negotiations.  (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, 
Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

9. Presentation of Cash Flow Report for the 6 months ended June 30, 2014 

Kaplan presented the Cash Flow Report for the 6 months ended June 30, 2014 noting that without 
the prepayment program, CCCERA’s monthly cash inflow would be increased by approximately 
$19 million. 

10. Consider and take possible action on SACRS legislative proposal 

Levy reported about the SACRS 2015 legislative proposal.  The proposal would introduce legislation 
to clarify that a member who retired for service and is later granted a disability retirement benefit 
may change their retirement option.  Staff recommends supporting the proposal as it is consistent 
with CCCERA current practice as well as the practice of many other CERL systems.  

It was M/S/C to support the SACRS legislative proposal.  (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 



Page 3 
November 5, 2014 

 

 

11. Report of Purchase and/or Sale of a Pension Fund Investment: PIMCO 

Hast read the following into the record: The Board met in closed session pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.81 to consider the sale and purchase of a particular pension fund investment on 
October 8, 2014, Agenda Item No. 6.  In accordance with Government Code Section 54957.1(a)(7), 
the following action is hereby reported: It was M/S/C to direct PIMCO to sell the CCCERA 
investments in the sector funds and invest the proceeds in a separate account broadly intended to 
track the Barclays Aggregate Index. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Smithey, Telles, 
Watts. Opp: None. Abs: None) 

12. Consider and take possible action on Board meeting schedule for 2015 

It was M/S/C to accept the Board meeting schedule for 2015 as presented.  (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, 
Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

13. Conference Seminar Attendance 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member and 1 staff member at the 2014 
Annual Review, Paulson Real Estate Funds, November 21, 2014, New York, NY.  (Yes:  Hast, 
Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 5. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957. 
 

The Board moved into open session. 
 

5. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 
benefits: 

a. Michael Espinoza – Service Connected (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

b. Kenneth Gmeiner – Service Connected (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

c. Jeffrey Nelson – Service Connected (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Watts) 

d. Christopher Wilson – Service Connected (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

e. Sonya Pye – Non-service Connected (Yes:  Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Watts 
 

14. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 

Price reviewed the PIMCO transaction which was reported in Item 11 noting the assets were 
successfully transferred.  He received an announcement from Energy Investor Funds that they are 
selling the corporate company to Ares Management, L.P. noting the transaction is expected to 
close by year end. 
 
Levy reported SACRS is undertaking a project to reorganize the ’37 Act book by re-numbering 
the statutes in order to make the '37 Act more user-friendly.  The proposed statutory changes 



Page 4 
November 5, 2014 

 

 

would have to go through the legislative process.  If enacted, the changes in the statute numbers 
would then require CCCERA to amend the numbers on many of our documents, including Board 
resolutions, policies, etc. 
 
Kaplan reported she attended the P2F2 Conference and felt it was a great conference. She noted 
we are on target with GASB 67 and 68. She announced CCCERA received the Public Pension 
Standards Award for 2014. 

 
Strohl reported the County is working on a draft service agreement for the services they will be 
providing to CCCERA; she also reported the County is only able to use their federal and state tax 
ID numbers when processing CCCERA’s payroll noting she spoke to tax counsel and they stated 
it is ok to use the County’s numbers on a temporary basis.  She thanked Levy and Dunn for their 
behind the scenes work on the transition of CCCERA into a separate district; The Retirement 
Benefits Manager resigned and Schneider will be acting as the interim. 

  
Dunn gave update on the remodel noting the installation of the door FOBs will be done this week.  

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 
None 

 
(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 
Rodrigues asked what agenda the PEPRA base-pay only item will be on.  It was noted it will be 
in the next few months. 

 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Watts) 
 
 
 
 
             
Brian Hast, Chairman     Jerry Telles, Secretary 
 
 
























































































































































































	agenda 12.10.14
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12

